
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

#plymreview 

SCRUTINY – CO-OPERATIVE SCRUTINY REVIEWS 

WASTE STRATEGY 
 
Meeting Dates: 
 
Date: 3 March 2014 17 March 2014 2 April 2014 
Time: 4pm 4pm 4pm 
Venue: Council House (Next to 

the Civic Centre) 
Council House (Next to 
the Civic Centre) 

Council House (Next to 
the Civic Centre) 

 
 
Members: 
Councillors Bowyer, Philippa Davey, Michael Leaves, Tuohy and Wheeler. 
 
Members are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of business overleaf. 
 
 
Tracey Lee 
Chief Executive 

 

 

 Democratic Support 
Plymouth City Council 
Civic Centre 
Plymouth  PL1 2AA 
 
Please ask for  Lynn Young, Democratic 
Support Officer 
T 01752 304163 
E Tel 01752 304163  Email 
lynn.young@plymouth.gov.uk 
www.plymouth.gov.uk/democracy 
Published 21 February 2014 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 
SCRUTINY - COOPERATIVE SCRUTINY REVIEWS 
WASTE STRATEGY 
 
 

PART I - PUBLIC MEETING 
  
1. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR    
  
 Members will be asked to appoint a Chair for this review. 
  
2. APOLOGIES    
  
 To receive apologies for non-attendance submitted by members. 
  
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
  
 Members will be asked to make any declarations of interest in respect of this agenda. 
  
4. CHAIR'S URGENT BUSINESS    
  
 To receive reports on business which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be brought 

forward for urgent consideration. 
  
5. CO-OPERATIVE SCRUTINY REVIEW - WASTE 

STRATEGY   
 

  
 The panel will consider the various documentation and information submitted – 
  
 5a.  BRIEFING REPORT (Pages 1 - 10) 
   
  The panel will receive a briefing report which will set the background for the co-

operative review. 
   
 5b.  BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
   
 5c.  WITNESSES (IF ANY)  
   
 5d.  CO-OPERATIVE REVIEW REQUEST FORM (Pages 11 - 12) 
   
       5e.  CO-OPERATIVE REVIEW PROJECT PLAN (Pages 13 - 16) 
   
6. EXEMPT BUSINESS    
  
 To consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 

1972 to exclude the press and public from the meeting for the following item(s) of 
business on the grounds that it (they) involve the likely disclosure of exempt information 
as defined in paragraph(s)   of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, as amended by the 
Freedom of Information Act 2000. 



 

 

  
PART II - PRIVATE MEETING 
 
AGENDA 
 
MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC TO NOTE 
that under the law, the panel is entitled to consider certain items in private.  Members of the 
public will be asked to leave the meeting when such items are discussed. 
 
NIL. 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



Technical Note 
1

Plymouth Waste Strategy Review:
Cooperative Scrutiny Board Briefing Note 

1. Introduction and Background 

1.1 Background
Plymouth’s Municipal Waste Management Strategy (MWMS) was adopted in April 2007 and 
covers the period 2007 to 2030.  Due to the long term timescale and the many factors that affect 
waste arisings, the strategy states that it will be the subject of review every 5 years.  The aim of 
this review is to set out how and where Plymouth manages wastes and identify the City’s future 
strategic waste management requirements which will inform the needs assessment of the Waste 
Development Plan, which provides planning guidance, policy and criteria for waste 
development across the City.  As part of this review, these two strategic documents (i.e. the 
MWMS and the Waste Development Plan) will be integrated under a single document known as 
the Plymouth Plan, a draft plan document of which is scheduled for autumn 2014.  The intention 
is that the Cooperative Scrutiny Group will inform, direct and support the review process. 

AMEC Environment & Infrastructure UK Limited (‘AMEC’) has been appointed by Plymouth 
City Council to undertake the review of the Waste Strategy, update the supporting waste needs 
assessment, and identify any appropriate locations of waste management facilities.  As such, 
AMEC with support from officers will provide guidance and technical advice and support to the 
Cooperative Scrutiny Group. 

1.2 Purpose of Cooperative Scrutiny Review 
A key aim of the review is to seek a fresh view and consider any innovative approaches to 
broaden sustainability benefits through waste management solutions, and achieve better 
resource management and generate added value in terms of local job creation, community 
involvement in waste minimisation and recycling activities, and reduce carbon impact.   

The purpose of the Cooperative Scrutiny Review is two-fold: 

• Facilitate the Waste Strategy review and stakeholder consultation process, which 
should be member rather than officer driven; and 

• Undertake its normal scrutiny remit in respect of the Waste Strategy review. 

© AMEC Environment & Infrastructure UK Limited
February 2014 
H:\Projects\34138 Plymouth Need Assessment Review\Docs\N096i1_final.docx 

Agenda Item 5aPage 1



Technical Note 
2

© AMEC Environment & Infrastructure UK Limited
February 2014 
H:\Projects\34138 Plymouth Need Assessment Review\Docs\N096i1_final.docx 

2. Review of Current Waste Strategy 

2.1 Achievements to Date 
The current MWMS sets out a number of policies, progress against which is outlined in 
Table 2.1.  The strategy runs until 2030 therefore progress against the majority of the policies 
remains ongoing, however it is important to note the delivery against two key policies, namely: 

• The Council has achieved a recycling rate of 33% in 2012/13, achieving the targets 
set out in Policy 4 to increase recycling and composting; and 

• The Council as part of the South West Devon Waste Partnership (SWDWP) has 
successfully procured a long term residual waste treatment facility with heat and 
electricity recovery using PFI grant support (Policy 9).  The MVV North Yard 
Energy from Waste (EfW) facility at Devonport is currently under construction and 
due to become operational in 2015.   

Page 2



T
ec

hn
ic

al
 N

ot
e 

3 T
ab

le
 2

.1
 

A
p

p
ra

is
al

 o
f 

C
u

rr
en

t 
M

W
M

S
 A

g
ai

n
st

 T
ar

g
et

s 

M
W

M
S

 C
u

rr
en

t 
P

o
lic

y 
M

W
M

S
 P

la
n

n
ed

 A
ct

io
n

s 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
F

u
rt

h
er

 A
ct

io
n

s 

P
ol

ic
y 

1 
– 

P
ro

m
ot

io
n 

of
 W

as
te

 
M

in
im

is
at

io
n 

th
ou

gh
 E

du
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

A
w

ar
en

es
s.

 

P
ly

m
ou

th
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 

co
ns

is
te

nt
, c

on
tin

uo
us

 e
du

ca
tio

na
l a

nd
 

pr
om

ot
io

na
l m

at
er

ia
l t

o 
as

si
st

 th
e 

dr
iv

e 
to

 
re

du
ce

 w
as

te
 a

ris
in

gs
 a

nd
 in

cr
ea

se
 p

ub
lic

 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

of
 th

e 
ne

ed
 to

 m
in

im
is

e 
w

as
te

. 

O
ng

oi
ng

 -
 W

as
te

 a
ris

in
gs

 h
av

e 
de

cr
ea

se
d 

by
 1

5.
5%

 fr
om

 th
e 

in
iti

al
 w

as
te

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t b
ut

 p
ot

en
tia

l f
or

 fu
rt

he
r 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t. 

C
on

tin
ue

 to
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

w
as

te
 r

ed
uc

tio
n 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 w
ith

 a
n 

ai
m

 to
 m

in
im

is
e 

ov
er

al
l 

w
as

te
 a

ris
in

gs
. 

P
ol

ic
y 

2 
– 

P
ro

m
ot

io
n 

of
 H

om
e 

C
om

po
st

in
g 

P
ly

m
ou

th
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 c

on
tin

ue
 to

 
pr

om
ot

e 
ho

m
e 

co
m

po
st

in
g 

bi
ns

 a
nd

 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

ed
uc

at
io

na
l s

up
po

rt
 fo

r 
th

ei
r 

us
e.

 

O
ng

oi
ng

 –
 T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
is

 c
on

tin
ui

ng
 to

 
pr

ov
id

e 
su

pp
or

t t
o 

re
si

de
nt

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
w

eb
si

te
 o

ffe
rin

g 
di

sc
ou

nt
ed

 h
om

e 
co

m
po

st
 

bi
ns

 a
nd

 a
dv

ic
e 

on
 h

ow
 to

 h
om

e 
co

m
po

st
. 

A
 to

ta
l o

f 2
,6

00
 c

om
po

st
 b

in
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
di

st
rib

ut
ed

 s
in

ce
 th

e 
st

ra
te

gy
 w

as
 a

do
pt

ed
. 

C
on

tin
ue

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 d
is

co
un

te
d 

ho
m

e 
co

m
po

st
 b

in
s 

fo
r 

re
si

de
nt

s 
an

d 
pr

om
ot

e 
th

ei
r 

us
e.

 

E
xp

lo
re

 p
ot

en
tia

l t
o 

de
ve

lo
p 

co
-o

pe
ra

tiv
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 c

om
po

st
in

g 
sc

he
m

es
 

P
ol

ic
y 

3 
– 

S
up

po
rt

 fo
r 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

ec
to

r 
In

iti
at

iv
es

 
T

he
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 e

nd
ea

vo
ur

 to
 g

iv
e 

su
pp

or
t t

o 
lo

ca
l g

ro
up

s 
pr

om
ot

in
g 

w
as

te
 

m
in

im
is

at
io

n 
in

iti
at

iv
es

 in
 P

ly
m

ou
th

. 

O
ng

oi
ng

 –
 S

up
po

rt
 3

rd
 s

ec
to

r 
&

 S
M

E
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

re
-u

se
 c

re
di

ts
, f

re
e 

di
sp

os
al

 a
nd

 
re

cy
cl

in
g 

fo
r 

ch
ar

iti
es

, C
IC

s,
 S

M
E

s 
un

de
rt

ak
in

g 
re

us
e 

an
d 

re
cy

cl
in

g 
ac

tiv
iti

es
.  

O
ne

 o
f t

he
 C

ou
nc

il’
s 

tw
o 

H
W

R
C

s 
is

 n
ow

 
be

in
g 

ru
n 

by
 a

 tr
us

t o
rg

an
is

at
io

n.
   

 

C
on

tin
ue

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 s

up
po

rt
 w

he
re

 a
 v

al
ue

 
fo

r 
m

on
ey

 (
V

F
M

) 
ca

se
 c

an
 b

e 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
d.

 

P
ol

ic
y 

4 
– 

In
cr

ea
se

 R
ec

yc
lin

g 
an

d 
C

om
po

st
in

g
P

ly
m

ou
th

 C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 in
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f h
ou

se
ho

ld
 w

as
te

 r
ec

yc
le

d 
or

 c
om

po
st

ed
 y

ea
r 

on
 y

ea
r.

  T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

se
t t

he
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

re
cy

cl
in

g 
an

d 
co

m
po

st
in

g 
ta

rg
et

s 
fo

r 
ho

us
eh

ol
d 

w
as

te
: 

30
%

 b
y 

20
10

 

33
%

 b
y 

20
15

. 

A
tta

in
ed

 –
 C

ou
nc

il 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 a

 r
ec

yc
lin

g 
ra

te
 o

f 3
3%

 in
 2

01
2/

13
. 

In
tr

od
uc

e 
a 

ke
rb

si
de

 g
la

ss
 r

ec
yc

lin
g 

co
lle

ct
io

n 
se

rv
ic

e 
an

d 
st

riv
e 

to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 th

e 
po

lit
ic

al
 c

om
m

itm
en

t t
o 

re
cy

cl
e 

40
%

 b
y 

20
16

 a
nd

 5
0%

 b
y 

20
20

.  

P
ol

ic
y 

5 
– 

K
er

bs
id

e 
C

ol
le

ct
io

ns
 

P
ly

m
ou

th
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 w

or
k 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
B

es
t V

al
ue

 p
rin

ci
pl

es
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
ll 

re
si

de
nt

s 
re

ce
iv

e 
a 

hi
gh

 q
ua

lit
y 

w
as

te
 

se
rv

ic
e 

at
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 c
os

t. 
W

e 
w

ill
 

co
nt

in
ua

lly
 r

ev
ie

w
 th

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 m

at
er

ia
ls

 
co

lle
ct

ed
 in

 th
e 

ke
rb

si
de

 s
ch

em
es

 a
nd

, 
w

he
re

 it
 is

 e
co

no
m

ic
al

ly
 fe

as
ib

le
 to

 d
o 

so
, 

w
ill

 m
ax

im
is

e 
th

e 
co

lle
ct

io
n 

of
 r

ec
yc

la
bl

e 
m

at
er

ia
l a

t t
he

 k
er

bs
id

e.
   

O
ng

oi
ng

 –
 T

he
 k

er
bs

id
e 

ga
rd

en
 w

as
te

 
co

lle
ct

io
n 

se
rv

ic
e 

ha
s 

be
en

 e
xp

an
de

d 
to

 
th

e 
w

ho
le

 c
ity

, k
er

bs
id

e 
gl

as
s 

co
lle

ct
io

n 
tr

ia
ls

 h
av

e 
be

en
 in

tr
od

uc
ed

, a
nd

 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t f
or

 a
 n

ew
 M

R
F

 to
 in

cl
ud

e 
gl

as
s 

re
cy

cl
in

g 
to

 e
na

bl
e 

it 
to

 b
e 

ro
lle

d 
ou

t 
to

 th
e 

w
ho

le
 C

ity
 is

 u
nd

er
w

ay
. 

C
om

pl
et

e 
th

e 
ro

ll 
ou

t o
f k

er
bs

id
e 

gl
as

s 
re

cy
cl

in
g.

  C
on

si
de

r 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l f

or
 a

 o
f 

fo
od

 w
as

te
 c

ol
le

ct
io

n 
se

rv
ic

e 
an

d/
or

 o
th

er
 

m
at

er
ia

ls
.

©
 A

M
E

C
 E

nv
ir

on
m

en
t &

 In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 U

K
 L

im
ite

d
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

01
4 

H
:\P

ro
je

ct
s\

34
13

8 
Pl

ym
ou

th
 N

ee
d 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t R

ev
ie

w
\D

oc
s\

N
09

6i
1_

fi
na

l.d
oc

x 

Page 3



T
ec

hn
ic

al
 N

ot
e 

4 ©
 A

M
E

C
 E

nv
ir

on
m

en
t &

 In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 U

K
 L

im
ite

d
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

01
4 

H
:\P

ro
je

ct
s\

34
13

8 
Pl

ym
ou

th
 N

ee
d 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t R

ev
ie

w
\D

oc
s\

N
09

6i
1_

fi
na

l.d
oc

x 

M
W

M
S

 C
u

rr
en

t 
P

o
lic

y 
M

W
M

S
 P

la
n

n
ed

 A
ct

io
n

s 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
F

u
rt

h
er

 A
ct

io
n

s 

P
ol

ic
y 

6 
– 

B
rin

g 
S

ite
s 

(r
ec

yc
lin

g 
ba

nk
s)

 
P

ly
m

ou
th

 C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

in
te

nd
 to

 e
nh

an
ce

 
an

d 
pr

om
ot

e 
th

e 
ne

tw
or

k 
of

 b
rin

g 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
C

ity
, e

ns
ur

in
g 

th
e 

m
os

t 
ef

fic
ie

nt
 a

nd
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

di
st

rib
ut

io
n.

 

M
ix

ed
 –

 R
ef

ur
bi

sh
m

en
t a

nd
 r

ev
ie

w
 o

f b
an

k 
al

lo
ca

tio
n 

w
as

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 in

 2
00

8,
 

ho
w

ev
er

 to
nn

ag
es

 c
ol

le
ct

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
br

in
g 

ba
nk

 n
et

w
or

k 
ha

ve
 d

ec
re

as
ed

.  
 

R
ev

ie
w

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t, 

in
 li

gh
t o

f t
he

 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 k

er
bs

id
e 

gl
as

s 
re

cy
cl

in
g 

fo
r 

ho
us

eh
ol

ds
 a

nd
 c

om
m

er
ci

al
 p

re
m

is
es

, f
or

 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 th

e 
11

6 
br

in
g 

ba
nk

s 
w

ith
 

re
ga

rd
s 

to
 th

e 
nu

m
be

rs
, l

oc
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 
m

at
er

ia
ls

 c
ol

le
ct

ed
. 

P
ol

ic
y 

7 
– 

H
ou

se
ho

ld
 W

as
te

 R
ec

yc
lin

g 
C

en
tr

es
 (

fo
rm

er
ly

 C
iv

ic
 A

m
en

ity
 R

ec
yc

lin
g 

C
en

tr
es

) 

P
ly

m
ou

th
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 c

on
tin

ua
lly

 
re

vi
ew

 th
ei

r 
H

ou
se

ho
ld

 W
as

te
 R

ec
yc

lin
g 

C
en

tr
e 

(H
W

R
C

) 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 

th
er

e 
is

 s
uf

fic
ie

nt
 c

ap
ac

ity
 to

 s
at

is
fy

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

ne
ed

s.
  A

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f s

ite
 la

yo
ut

 a
nd

 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 a

de
qu

at
e 

re
cy

cl
in

g 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 in

 a
n 

at
te

m
pt

 
to

 m
ax

im
is

e 
th

e 
ca

pt
ur

e 
of

 r
ec

yc
la

bl
e 

m
at

er
ia

l a
t t

he
 tw

o 
ex

is
tin

g 
si

te
s.

 

O
ng

oi
ng

 –
 C

he
ls

on
 M

ea
do

w
 H

W
R

C
 w

as
 

fu
lly

 r
eb

ui
lt 

in
 2

01
0 

an
d 

H
W

R
C

 r
ec

yc
lin

g 
&

 
co

m
po

st
in

g 
ra

te
 h

as
 r

is
en

 fr
om

 4
1%

 to
 

62
%

 in
 2

01
2/

13
.  

F
ur

th
er

 o
pe

ra
tio

na
l 

ch
an

ge
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
m

ad
e 

re
ce

nt
ly

 to
 

im
pr

ov
e 

co
st

 e
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

.

R
ev

ie
w

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 H
W

R
C

s,
 th

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 m

at
er

ia
l c

ol
le

ct
ed

, a
nd

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

de
liv

er
y 

at
 th

e 
si

te
s 

to
 c

on
tin

ue
 th

e 
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 th
e 

le
ve

ls
 o

f r
ec

yc
lin

g 
an

d 
di

ve
rs

io
n 

at
 th

e 
H

W
R

C
s.

 

P
ol

ic
y 

8 
– 

W
as

te
 D

is
po

sa
l t

o 
La

nd
fil

l  
P

ly
m

ou
th

 C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 e
nd

ea
vo

ur
 to

 
re

du
ce

 th
e 

pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 m
un

ic
ip

al
 w

as
te

 
di

sp
os

ed
 o

f t
o 

la
nd

fil
l y

ea
r 

on
 y

ea
r.

 

O
ng

oi
ng

 –
 L

ev
el

s 
of

 m
at

er
ia

l l
an

df
ill

ed
 h

as
 

re
du

ce
d 

by
 a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
25

K
 tp

a 
to

 
20

12
/1

3.
 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ai
m

s 
fo

r 
ze

ro
 w

as
te

 to
 la

nd
fil

l 
w

ith
 th

e 
E

fW
 fa

ci
lit

y 
gu

ar
an

te
ei

ng
 9

7%
 

di
ve

rs
io

n 
fr

om
 la

nd
fil

l f
ro

m
 2

01
5.

  I
t w

ill
 

co
nt

in
ue

 to
 in

ve
st

ig
at

e 
w

as
te

 m
in

im
is

at
io

n,
 

re
us

e,
 r

ec
yc

lin
g 

an
d 

co
m

po
st

in
g 

sc
he

m
es

 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 d
iv

er
t a

ll 
m

at
er

ia
l f

ro
m

 la
nd

fil
l. 

 

P
ol

ic
y 

9 
– 

R
es

id
ua

l W
as

te
 T

re
at

m
en

t 
F

ac
ili

ty
 

P
ly

m
ou

th
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 p

ro
cu

re
 a

 w
as

te
 

tr
ea

tm
en

t f
ac

ili
ty

 fo
r 

th
e 

pr
oc

es
si

ng
 o

f 
m

un
ic

ip
al

 w
as

te
 n

ot
 r

ec
ov

er
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

re
cy

cl
in

g 
an

d 
co

m
po

st
in

g 
sy

st
em

s.
  

R
ec

ov
er

y 
of

 e
ne

rg
y 

fr
om

 th
e 

w
as

te
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 m
ax

im
is

ed
 w

he
re

 p
os

si
bl

e.
 

A
tta

in
ed

 –
 S

W
D

W
P

 p
ro

cu
re

d 
an

 E
fW

 w
ith

 
he

at
 a

nd
 e

le
ct

ric
ity

 r
ec

ov
er

y 
w

ith
 P

F
I g

ra
nt

 
su

pp
or

t. 
 F

ac
ili

ty
 is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 u

nd
er

 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
an

d 
du

e 
to

 b
ec

om
e 

op
er

at
io

na
l i

n 
20

15
. 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
e 

op
po

rt
un

ity
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

by
 

th
is

 fa
ci

lit
y 

is
 m

ax
im

is
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

A
ut

ho
rit

y.
 

P
ol

ic
y 

10
 –

 C
om

m
er

ci
al

 W
as

te
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 a

n 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 w
as

te
 c

ol
le

ct
io

n 
se

rv
ic

e,
 a

nd
 w

ill
 lo

ok
 in

to
 th

e 
in

tr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 a
 r

ec
yc

lin
g 

se
rv

ic
e.

 T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 
ho

ld
 p

er
io

di
c 

re
vi

ew
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
is

 e
ffi

ci
en

t a
nd

 c
os

t e
ffe

ct
iv

e.
 

O
ng

oi
ng

 –
 T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
op

er
at

es
 a

 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 w

as
te

 c
ol

le
ct

io
n 

se
rv

ic
e 

an
d 

ha
s 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

th
e 

op
tio

n 
fo

r 
th

e 
co

lle
ct

io
n 

of
 r

ec
yc

la
bl

es
 fr

om
 c

om
m

er
ci

al
 

pr
em

is
es

.

C
on

tin
ue

 to
 o

pe
ra

te
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
vi

ew
 to

 in
cr

ea
si

ng
 th

e 
ta

ke
 u

p 
of

 th
e 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 r
es

id
ua

l w
as

te
 a

nd
 r

ec
yc

lin
g 

se
rv

ic
es

. 

Page 4



T
ec

hn
ic

al
 N

ot
e 

5 ©
 A

M
E

C
 E

nv
ir

on
m

en
t &

 In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 U

K
 L

im
ite

d
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

01
4 

H
:\P

ro
je

ct
s\

34
13

8 
Pl

ym
ou

th
 N

ee
d 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t R

ev
ie

w
\D

oc
s\

N
09

6i
1_

fi
na

l.d
oc

x 

M
W

M
S

 C
u

rr
en

t 
P

o
lic

y 
M

W
M

S
 P

la
n

n
ed

 A
ct

io
n

s 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
F

u
rt

h
er

 A
ct

io
n

s 

P
ol

ic
y 

11
 -

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 c

on
tin

ue
 to

 in
ve

st
ig

at
e 

th
e 

po
ss

ib
ili

ty
 o

f j
oi

nt
 w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 o

th
er

 
au

th
or

iti
es

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
su

b 
re

gi
on

. 

O
ng

oi
ng

 –
 T

he
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

ha
s 

ve
ry

 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

ly
 w

or
ke

d 
w

ith
 D

ev
on

 a
nd

 
T

or
ba

y 
to

 p
ro

cu
re

 th
e 

E
fW

 fa
ci

lit
y.

  L
ia

is
es

 
w

ith
 D

ev
on

 a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

an
d 

un
de

rt
ak

es
 

jo
in

t w
as

te
 m

in
im

is
at

io
n,

 r
ec

yc
lin

g 
an

d 
pr

om
ot

io
na

l a
ct

iv
iti

es
. 

C
on

tin
ue

 to
 in

ve
st

ig
at

e 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l f

or
 

jo
in

t w
or

ki
ng

 in
 o

th
er

 a
sp

ec
ts

 o
f w

as
te

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t a
s 

th
e 

op
tio

ns
 a

ris
e.

 

P
ol

ic
y 

12
 –

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
R

ev
ie

w
  

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
 p

er
io

di
c 

re
vi

ew
s 

of
 th

e 
w

as
te

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
ev

er
y 

5 
ye

ar
s,

 in
 a

dd
iti

on
 to

 r
ev

ie
w

s 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

an
y 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
T

rig
ge

r 
P

oi
nt

s.
  P

ro
gr

es
s 

ag
ai

ns
t 

th
e 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
A

ct
io

n 
P

la
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

m
on

ito
re

d 
an

nu
al

ly
. 

C
ur

re
nt

 p
er

io
di

c 
re

vi
ew

 in
 p

ro
gr

es
s.

   
R

et
ai

n 
re

vi
ew

 p
ro

vi
si

on
. 

Page 5



Technical Note 
6

2.2 Waste Strategy Review Elements 
In the context of the Waste Strategy review, it is important to understand that a number of 
elements of Plymouth’s waste management delivery are now fixed or provide some constraint 
given that these were set out in the MWMS 2007 and have been delivered.  This is particularly 
the case with regards to the treatment of residual wastes and to a lesser extent the collection of 
mixed dry recyclates which are to be sorted via a new MRF that is about to be procured.  Any 
changes to these elements would impact either on recently procured positions or current 
procurements placing considerable risk upon the Council and potentially exposing it to 
considerable costs. 

As such, the review of the Waste Strategy will need to be focussed on the remaining elements of 
the waste management system typically covering smaller, harder to access tonnages; the 
exceptions being the collection of organic wastes and food waste collection.  The table below 
identifies those elements of household and commercial wastes within the MWMS 2007 which 
are fixed or constrained as well as those elements which can be reviewed with some initial 
suggestions as to how these could be taken forward in a different / innovative way.  In addition, 
due consideration will need to be given to any new Council aspirations, such as a zero waste to 
landfill target and supporting local indicators.   

Table 2.2 Waste Strategy Review Elements 

Waste Strategy Element Review Status Implications of Change / 
Options for Review 

Residual Waste Fixed

MMV North Yard facility procured and 
under construction.  Operational 
2015.

N/A.  Composition of residual waste 
is flexible but significant cost 
implications if minimum tonnages are 
not delivered.  

Mixed Dry Recyclates (including 
glass)

Fixed 

A MRF capable of sorting mixed 
recycling including glass collected at 
the kerbside is currently being 
procured. 

N/A.  Potentially significant cost 
implications if materials collected 
change.   

Green waste (gardens/parks) Constrained but subject to review Review current collection systems 
and composting treatment options.  
Seek opportunities to develop 
community composting schemes. 

Food waste collections Constrained but subject to review Options for food waste include collect 
either co-mingled with green waste to 
IVC or collect separately to AD but 
need to recognise logistical and 
economic implications.  Any changes 
to the management of food waste 
could potentially impinge on agreed 
minimum contracted tonnages which 
would have cost implications.   

© AMEC Environment & Infrastructure UK Limited
February 2014 
H:\Projects\34138 Plymouth Need Assessment Review\Docs\N096i1_final.docx 

Page 6



Technical Note 
7

Table 2.3 (continued) Waste Strategy Review Elements 

Waste Strategy Element Review Status Implications of Change / 
Options for Review 

HWRCs collected materials Subject to review Review the range of materials 
collected at HWRCs and policies for 
charging, acceptance of commercial 
wastes from SMEs, etc. 

Peripheral household waste streams  

(e.g. batteries, electrical, WEEE 
furniture, bulky waste recycling etc) 

Subject to review Review of the range of peripheral 
household waste streams collected; 
Identify innovative solutions through 
seeking to work in partnership with 
the 3rd sector and local communities. 

In light of the above, this review of the Waste Strategy provides an opportunity to consider the 
Council’s requirements with regards to service developments.  With the removal of formal 
targets from central government (BVPI and NI targets) it allows the Council to determine the 
basis on which it implements any service developments, i.e. should the assessment be on the 
basis of a tonnage increase in recycling/diversion from landfill or should it include additional 
beneficial considerations such as social benefit, employment/training opportunities, carbon 
reduction, etc, and to discuss the potential service developments that could be considered for the 
remaining elements of the waste stream, i.e. those elements which are not subject to current 
procurement agreements.  This will facilitate identifying potential service development options 
and policies the Council may wish to develop based on their wider strategic requirements, and 
set out a framework for assessing the viability of their implementation. 

3. Waste Strategy Review Consultation 

It is best practise to undertake appropriate stakeholder consultation as part of the review of the 
Waste Strategy; therefore it is proposed to hold a Stakeholder Workshop.  This workshop would 
not only form part of the evidence base for the review of the Waste Strategy, but also for the 
Cooperative Scrutiny Board.   

Facilitated and delivered by AMEC, the purpose of the workshop would be twofold: first, to 
ensure the objectives and criteria of the Waste Strategy are ‘fit for purpose’ and whether they 
require any amendments and if so what; and secondly, to prioritise an identified suite of waste 
service development options with the aim of refining those options, including some justification 
for that refinement.  The outcome would then inform an evaluation of the refined options and 
subsequently inform the Waste Strategy review.  A report on the outcome of the Stakeholder 
Workshop would be prepared by AMEC and published to form part of the evidence base for the 
Waste Strategy review.   

As well as reviewing and drawing from an existing PCC consultation database, it would be 
helpful to know which stakeholders in particular PCC want to attend and to canvas them 
accordingly.  Suggested invitees include: 

• Members; 

© AMEC Environment & Infrastructure UK Limited
February 2014 
H:\Projects\34138 Plymouth Need Assessment Review\Docs\N096i1_final.docx 

Page 7



Page 8



Technical Note 
9

© AMEC Environment & Infrastructure UK Limited
February 2014 
H:\Projects\34138 Plymouth Need Assessment Review\Docs\N096i1_final.docx 

Copyright and Non-Disclosure Notice 

The contents and layout of this report are subject to copyright owned by AMEC (©AMEC Environment & Infrastructure UK Limited 2014) save to the 
extent that copyright has been legally assigned by us to another party or is used by AMEC under licence.  To the extent that we own the copyright in 
this report, it may not be copied or used without our prior written agreement for any purpose other than the purpose indicated in this report. 

The methodology (if any) contained in this report is provided to you in confidence and must not be disclosed or copied to third parties without the prior 
written agreement of AMEC.  Disclosure of that information may constitute an actionable breach of confidence or may otherwise prejudice our 
commercial interests.  Any third party who obtains access to this report by any means will, in any event, be subject to the Third Party Disclaimer set 
out below. 

Third Party Disclaimer 

Any disclosure of this report to a third party is subject to this disclaimer.  The report was prepared by AMEC at the instruction of, and for use by, our 
client named on the front of the report.  It does not in any way constitute advice to any third party who is able to access it by any means.  AMEC 
excludes to the fullest extent lawfully permitted all liability whatsoever for any loss or damage howsoever arising from reliance on the contents of this 
report.  We do not however exclude our liability (if any) for personal injury or death resulting from our negligence, for fraud or any other matter in 
relation to which we cannot legally exclude liability. 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



 

  

REQUEST FOR  A CO-
OPERATIVE REVIEW 
 

 
Please submit this document to Democratic Support once complete.  
 
The request will be submitted to the Co-operative Scrutiny Board for consideration against the 
approval criteria and you will be notified of its success. If the Board approve the request for a Co-
operative Review on the subject matter below then a project plan will be completed and you may 
be asked for further information.  

  
 

What is the name of the 
review? 

 

Please provide a brief 
outline of the subject and 
scope of the review? 

Waste Strategy Review  

Please outline the reasons 
as to why you believe a 
review needs to take 
place? 

The five year review of the Plymouth’s current Waste Strategy is 
presently underway and as part of this review the strategy will 
need to inform the needs assessment of the Waste Development 
Plan. Consultants have been commissioned to prepare an evidence 
base and advise on alternative methods of managing waste.  The 
cooperative review will provide supporting guidance and direction 
to the consultants. 

What will the review 
attempt to achieve? 

The revised waste strategy will aim to establish increased 
sustainable waste management practices and the future direction 
of Plymouth’s waste in the next 20 years. 

Who will benefit from the 
review? 

The City as whole, as waste management effects every resident, 
business and visitors, as well as the environment.   

How long do you think 
the review might take? 

Three - four months  

When do you think the 
review should commence 
and why? 

February 2014 – given the Plymouth Plan timetable which seeks to 
achieve a draft Plan by Autumn 2014 

When do you think the 
review should be 
completed by and why? 

March/April 2014 – to enable the Plymouth Plan timetable to be 
achieved. 

Review requested by? Mark Turner (Head of Waste Services) and Richard Grant (Local 
Planning Team Leader) 

 

Received in Democratic Support Section: Reviewed by the Co-operative Scrutiny Board: 

Agenda Item 5dPage 11



 

 

 
 
 

Date:   Date:   
Scrutiny Review Approved/Rejected  
If approved initial Project Plan meeting date:  

Page 12



 

Version and date  Not protectively marked OR Protect OR Restricted 

CO-OPERATIVE REVIEW 
PROJECT PLAN 
 

  
Background 
 
Chair: 
 

Councillor Philippa Davey 
 

Lead Officer: 
 

Mark Turner (Head of Waste Services) and Richard 
Grant (Local Planning Team Leader) 
 

Democratic Support Officer: 
 

Lynn Young 
 

Membership: 
 

Councillors Ian Bowyer, Michael Leaves, Tuohy and 
Wheeler 
 

Relevant Cabinet Member: 
 

Councillor Vincent 

Date review approved by the Co-operative Scrutiny 
Board: 
 

Under delegated authority of the Chair and Vice 
Chair of the Co-operative Scrutiny Board on 27 
January 2014. 
 

Summary of subject  to be 
reviewed: 
 

Plymouth’s current Municipal Waste Management Strategy (MWMS), the five 
year planned review of the Waste Strategy is presently being undertaken and 
Consultants have been commissioned to prepare an evidence base and advise 
on alternative methods of managing waste and potential future viable options 
for Plymouth.  The strategy review will also need to inform the needs 
assessment of the Waste Development Plan (2005) also currently being 
revised.  Both reviews will inform the draft Plymouth Plan scheduled for 
completion in Autumn 2014. 
 

Reason(s) and rationale for the 
review: 
 

Plymouth’s Municipal Waste Management Strategy was adopted in April 2007 
and covers the period 2007 to 2030.  Due to the long term timescale and the 
many factors that affect waste arisings the strategy has interim reviews 
incorporated.  
 
The aim of this five year review is to set out how and where Plymouth 
manages waste and identify the City’s future strategic waste management 
requirements which will inform the needs assessment of the Waste 
Development Plan.  As part of the review the two strategic documents will be 
integrated under the Plymouth Plan and a draft plan document is scheduled 
for autumn 2014. 
 
The intention is that the Scrutiny Review Group will inform, direct and 
support the review process.   
 
The Consultants with support from officers will provide guidance, technical 
and legal advice and support to the Group.  To initiate this process the 
Consultants will hold a Scrutiny Review Group consultation session. 
A key aim of the review is to seek a fresh view and an innovative approach to 
waste management to broaden sustainability benefits through waste 
management solutions and achieve better resource management and generate 
added value in terms of local job creation, community involvement in waste 
minimisation and recycling activities and reduced carbon impact. 

Agenda Item 5ePage 13



 

 

 
The review is an opportunity to make a positive impact on a service area or 
community. 
 

Objectives of the review: 
 

Options appraisal of potential alternative methods of dealing with waste and 
the benefits and disadvantages of these methods and the feasibility of 
implementation identified potential methods in the City. 
 
To review the City’s current waste management provision and establish 
future potential waste management facility needs and identify appropriate 
locations. 
 
Any change must be considered in accordance with the waste hierarchy to 
ensure that sustainable waste management is promoted. 
 
Ways to create local business, employment and training opportunities while 
gaining community involvement in sustainable waste management practices 
and means to reduce the carbon impact of waste management activities 
should be explored.   
 
To meet the Plymouth Plan time frame, the waste strategy review must be 
completed by March/April 2014.  The initial Scrutiny Review Group session 
will need to be scheduled for March 2014.  
 

What will the review look at? 
 

The following will be considered: 
• The current municipal waste strategy and waste management service 

provision.  
• Current waste composition and arisings and future predictions. 
• Future waste management needs – based on analysis of the factors 

that affects it i.e. population, forth coming legislation. 
• Current waste management sites and the types of facilities in 

Plymouth and the surrounding area. 
• Opportunities to develop innovative sustainable waste management 

practices, added social value and reduced carbon impact. 
Which areas will be excluded 
from the review? 

 

What City and Council 
Priorities does the review 
relate to: 

• Deliver Growth 
• Raise Aspirations 
• Provide Value for Communities 

 
Identify links to other Council 
policies, projects or strategies: 

The Draft Plymouth Plan Scheduled for Autumn 2014. 

Who will benefit from the 
review 

The City as a whole, as waste management affects every resident, business 
and visitors as well as the environment. 

 
Methodology 
 
The method and approach of 
the review: 
 

The Consultants are leading the review with support as required by 
relevant officers and will:-  

• Review the current waste strategy and waste plan, in light of 
current legislation, population forecasts, current and emerging 
waste treatment and processing technologies and other factors 
affecting waste arisings to inform the revision of the waste 
strategy and inform the future Plymouth waste plan. 

• Facilitate Workshops/Consultation with Scrutiny, members, 

Page 14



 

 

representation of stakeholders. 
Witnesses and experts: 
 

Consultants to specify with guidance from Scrutiny and Officers, but 
will include:-  

• Senior Managers/Chief Officers; 
• Service users; 
• External partners; 
• Business representatives; 
• Voluntary and Community Groups; 
• Professional/Industry experts. 
• Members of the public 

Co-opted representatives: 
 

To identify any potential co-opted representatives to be part of the Scrutiny 
Review Group. 

Documents and/or reports for 
analysis e.g. internal/external 
reports or legislation): 
 

The following documents will assist with the review:- 
• Current Municipal Waste Management Strategy (2007 – 2030) 
• Waste Development Plan  
• Relevant legislation 
• Best Industry Practice – including Technically Economically,   
Environmentally Practicable (TEEP) 
• Performance plans and performance indicators; 
• Departmental service plans; 
• Consultation exercise evidence; 
• Costs and value for money 

Site visits: 
 

Potential requirement  

Consultations/Research: 
 

Responsibility of the Commissioned Consultants, support will be provided by 
waste management officers. 

Publicity: 
 

On the Council’s web site 

Evaluation method 
 

Evidenced based   

Resource Requirements: 
 

• Lead Officers and support staff have been allocated 
• Officer time is allocated 
• £45k cost of the Consultants has been allocated.    

•  

Barriers and Risks: 
 

Timeframe - critical in meeting the Plymouth Plan development 
schedule  
 

 
Timetable 
 

Activity Timescale / Date(s) Intended Outcome(s) 
Meeting 1: 
 

w/c 3 March 2014 Inform the content and format for the scrutiny and 
stakeholder workshops 

Meeting 2: 
 

w/c 10 March 2014 Guidance for the waste strategy revise, waste 
forward plan and the draft waste strategy 
 

Page 15



 

 

Meeting 3: 
 

w/c 24 March Obtain amendments/approval of draft waste 
strategy revise 
 

Draft report: April 2014  
Meeting 5 (approve report): 
 

April 2014  

Submit report to the Co-operative 
Scrutiny Board Meeting: 
 

  

Submit to Cabinet Meeting: 
 

  

Submit to other 
bodies/organisations: 

  

Scrutiny Panel to evaluate and 
track the outcomes of the Co-
operative Review: 

  

 

Page 16


	Agenda
	5a BRIEFING REPORT
	5d CO-OPERATIVE REVIEW REQUEST FORM
	5e CO-OPERATIVE REVIEW PROJECT PLAN

